These questions can be found by entering www.dtic.mil/defenselink/Other Information/Doing Business with the Department of Defense/Answers to Frequently Asked Questions.


Q.  If a performance spec contains a manufacturing process, which takes precedence, the performance spec or the specified manufacturing process? 





A.  A specification that mandates a specific manufacturing process is not a performance spec. If a contractor is asked to use a spec that contains a manufacturing process, the contractor can contact the Service Ombudsman (usually the Standards Improvement Executive) to investigate.


Q.  What are the flow down requirements for ISO 9000? Does an ISO company have to buy from only ISO 9001, 9002, 9003 sub-tier suppliers? 





A.  You must refer to the individual contract for flow down requirements. Generally, ISO 9000 will not be mandated in a contract unless that is the system the contractor chooses to offer. If the offer states that the company will buy only from ISO 9001, 9002, 9003 sub-tier suppliers, then the contract may repeat that language to ensure that the company abides by it's own rules. There is nothing in DoD guidance that would mandate such a flow down of requirements.


Q.  What am I supposed to do about canceled standardization documents which are cited in current contracts? 





A.  For existing contracts, cited specifications and standards remain in effect, whether canceled or not, unless there is a contract change. However, the Under Secretary of Defense for Acquisition and Technology [USD(A&T)] is encouraging defense contractors to seek changes to extant contracts to modify, or remove, non-value added procedural requirements imposed by military or federal specifications and standards. Furthermore, the USD(A&T)’s December 8, 1995, "Single Process Initiative" memo (see our Web home page) encourages contracting officers and program managers to rapidly evaluate such proposals and, wherever practicable, to approve them on a no-cost, block change basis. 


Q.  If I submit a waiver to cite a military specification in a solicitation as a requirement, don’t I also have to seek a waiver for all the tiered references? 





A.  No. Before the Milestone Decision Authority (MDA) grants a waiver, the tiered references must be taken into consideration, but separate waivers are not necessary. If the MDA approves the document without restrictions, the implication is that the tiered references are also waived. However, the MDA often requires that the document be tailored to remove unnecessarily restrictive requirements and references, thus in effect denying the use of certain tiered references.


Q.  My contractors are essentially component and material producers. They build lots of things that go into higher level assemblies or are placed in stock. They often do not know the final application of the item, or it could be used in a variety of applications. Essentially, they are "Built-to-Print" houses versus designers. They rely on the "details" (i.e., the contract drawings, tech data, Mil Specs, required materials, and references) provided by the Government or higher-level contractors to tell them what is required. In most cases, these are not high-tech items. Some contractors clearly try to do an excellent job while others try to barely meet minimum. Both my contractors and I believe that for their products it is better, easier, quicker, and cheaper to verify the item against detail requirements than performance terms. How do we get this point across to the specification preparers before they cancel or convert a "good" Mil Spec? 





A.  We agree that build-to-print requirements are the best approach for many items. DoD's major initial concern was with manufacturing and management standards as opposed to item specifications. The objective was to not limit contractor innovation. As we move into product specifications for secondary items (for example, commodities), the problem becomes more difficult to address with a simple solution. While it is DoD policy to state our requirements in terms of performance to the greatest extent practical, use of detail specifications is NOT prohibited, and sometimes that is the best solution. A series of documents has been established designated MIL-DTL for such detail requirements. The best answer is to continue to work with the spec preparing activities and buying activities involved with your commodities to determine the optimum balance between detail design requirements and performance requirements. 


Q.  My contractors primarily do aircraft maintenance & overhaul work. The contract SOW typically references a NAVAIR document or a tech order. This referenced document or tech order lays out the real requirements. Are these references now considered second tier and for guidance only? If so, there are very few requirements in the basic contract. 





A.  Dr. Perry's direction applied "during production." His policy did not address overhaul and repair work. As stated earlier, the policy changes are mostly directed at getting away from dictating manufacturing processes and specific detailed design solutions in the weapons acquisition process. Good judgment must be applied in situations such as these to ensure that the government's interests are protected while still allowing the contractor as much flexibility as is practical..


Q.  Why is DoD canceling all of the Mil Specs?





A.  We're not! The general Mil Spec Reform strategy is driven by resources, which have dropped in the last few years. The Department of Defense does not have the funding, manpower, or expertise to continue such past practices as maintaining a large technical document infrastructure of detailed military specifications and standards. 





Essentially, DoD intends to retain those documents needed to state the performance or interface requirements to contractors for future, newly-designed systems. DoD will also retain a mixture of performance documents, detail documents, and inactive for new design documents to support existing systems. However, as we increase our reliance on contractor logistics support, the retention of such documents will probably decrease.


Q.  Will industry need to retain many of these documents? 





A.  While DoD no longer has a requirement to maintain documents for thousands of military items for its own needs, industry may need them because they reflect commercial practices or are referenced in company drawings in support of a DoD requirement. In these cases, it is the responsibility of industry to assume ownership of these documents as a non-government standard.





DoD has developed a strategy to work with a variety of non-government standards groups to identify or develop replacements for Mil Specs where appropriate. One such teaming arrangement is with the Aerospace Industries Association (AIA). AIA has set up a database to track these documents and plan for their replacement, usually by an AIA National Aerospace Standard or a standard produced by the Society of Automotive Engineers.


Q.  Doesn't canceling military documents increase DoD's risk? 





A.  This doesn't increase risk to DoD, but it can transfer greater risk and responsibility to the contractor. The contractor has always had a responsibility for delivering a product that met the terms of the contract, but, in the past, contractors often attributed product failures to DoD imposed detailed specifications and standards. This excuse cannot be used to account for future failures, since the contractor now selects specifications and standards to meet the performance requirements.


Q.  Will the government remove its Quality Assurance Representatives from plants because of the block change initiative? 





A.  The block changes initiative, also called the Single Process Initiative, is a key element of acquisition reform. The objective is to allow industry to standardize process requirements on a facility basis, where it makes good business sense. Contractors are encouraged to propose their own processes based on non-government specifications, standards, or industry best practices that meet the intent of military specifications or standards. For industry, this provides an opportunity to re-engineer management and manufacturing processes to reduce cycle time and achieve quality through design. 





The block change initiative does not eliminate government inspection. It only simplifies inspection since a variety of processes can now be replaced by one common process within the plant. Administrative Contracting Officers (ACOs) also have the authority to execute class modifications, subject to receipt of necessary programmatic authorization from affected components.


Q.  Will the block change initiative shift responsibility for failures? 





A.  We believe that allowing the contractors to meet our performance requirements using manufacturing and management practices of their own choosing will greatly reduce the likelihood of failure. Responsibility for failures attributed to a block change needs to be addressed in the contract modification implementing the block change. Since the change proposal is initiated by the contractor and would likely include assurances that the operational requirements would be unaffected, it seems reasonable that the contractor would bear responsibility for system failures attributed to his recommended block change.


Q.  Didn't military specifications originate to prevent the delivery of inferior products from inadequate contractors? 





A.  Yes. Remember that Mil Spec Reform is part of a larger acquisition reform effort. Much of what we are doing would not be successful if many other aspects of acquisition were not changing simultaneously. Better and more consistent market research gives us much more information about the products we are buying. Greater use of commercial products (made possible by changes to the FAR and the DFAR) means buying products with proven track records. Best value procurement allows the award of contract based on factors other than price. Past performance means that the DoD plans to do business only with quality contractors who have proven by their performance in the past that they can deliver high quality products on time. All of these initiatives taken together complement Mil Spec Reform and should result in better products, faster, at better life cycle costs to the government.





